POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE Thursday, 17 November 2016

Minutes of the meeting of the Policy and Resources Committee held at Committee Rooms, 2nd Floor, West Wing, Guildhall on Thursday, 17 November 2016 at 1.45 pm

Present

Members:

Mark Boleat (Chairman)

Simon Duckworth (Deputy Chairman)

Deputy Catherine McGuinness (Deputy Chairman)

Alderman Sir Michael Bear

Deputy John Bennett

Alderman Charles Bowman

Henry Colthurst

Stuart Fraser

Marianne Fredericks

George Gillon

Deputy the Revd Stephen Haines (Ex-Officio Member)

Christopher Hayward (Ex-Officio Member)

Wendy Hyde

Vivienne Littlechild (Ex-Officio Member)

Edward Lord

Jeremy Mayhew

Andrew McMurtrie (Ex-Officio Member)

Wendy Mead

Deputy Alastair Moss (Ex-Officio Member)

Deputy Joyce Nash

Dhruv Patel (Ex-Officio Member)

Deputy Dr Giles Shilson

Tom Sleigh

Sir Michael Snyder

Deputy John Tomlinson

Michael Welbank (Chief Commoner) (Ex-Officio Member)

Alderman Sir David Wootton

In Attendance

Keith Bottomley

Rev'd William Campbell-Taylor

Officers:

John Barradell - Town Clerk and Chief Executive

Peter Kane - The Chamberlain
Paul Double - City Remembrancer

Paul Wilkinson - City Surveyor

Nicholas Gill - City Surveyor's Department

Ade Adetosoye - Director of Community & Children's

Services

William Chapman - Private Secretary and Chief of Staff

to the Lord Mayor

Sue Ireland - Director of Open Spaces

Deborah Cluett - Comptroller and City Solicitor's

Department

Damian Nussbaum - Director of Economic Development

Simon Woods - Chamberlain's Department
Giles French - Assistant Director of Economic

Development

Steve Presland - Department of the Built Environment
lain Simmons - Department of the Built Environment
Peter Shadbolt - Department of the Built Environment

Bob Roberts - Director of Communications

Philip Everett - Project Director

Nigel Lefton - Remembrancer's Department

Neal Hounsell - Department of Community and
Children's Services

Chris Pelham - Department of Community and

Children's Services

Simon Murrells - Assistant Town Clerk
Peter Lisley - Assistant Town Clerk

Angela Roach - Principal Committee and Members

Services Manager

1. APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence were received from Doug Barrow, Charles Bowman, Roger Chadwick, Alex Deane, Hugh Morris and Baroness Scotland.

2. MEMBERS DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA

The Chairman declared an interest in Item no. 26 by virtue of being a Member of PwC Advisory Board. Sir Michael Snyder declared an interest in Item no. 10 by virtue of being a Trustee on the Police Arboretum Memorial Trust.

3. MINUTES

- 3a. The public minutes of the meeting held on 6 October 2016 were approved subject item 2 reflecting that the Chairman was a member of the Centre London Board and not the Centre for London.
- 3b. The draft public minutes of the Resource Allocation Sub-Committee meeting held on 6 October 2016 were noted.
- 3c. The draft public minutes of the Projects Sub-Committee meeting held on 11 October 2016 were noted.
- 3d. The draft public minutes of the Public Relations and Economic Development Sub-Committee meeting held on 6 October 2016 were noted.

3e. The draft public minutes of the Courts Sub-Committee meeting held on 26 October 2016 were noted.

4. REVIEW OF PARLIAMENTARY CONSTITUENCY BOUNDARIES

The Committee considered a joint report of the Town Clerk and the Remembrancer concerning the Boundary Commission's review of parliamentary constituency boundaries.

RESOLVED – That the draft response to the Review of Parliamentary Constituency Boundaries as set out in the appendix to the report be approved and that the Remembrancer be authorised to submit it to the Commission.

5. OPEN SPACES LEARNING PROGRAMME

The Committee considered a report of the Director of Open Spaces concerning the funding of the Open Spaces learning Programme.

It was noted that the report would also be considered by the Education Board.

RESOLVED – That a sum of up to £200,000 be allocated from carry-forwards and reserves to support the Open Spaces Learning Programme in 2017/18 and 2018/19.

6. CITY OF LONDON ANTI-TERRORISM TRAFFIC ORDER

The Committee considered a report of the Director of the Built Environment concerning the introduction of an Anti-Terrorism Traffic Order (ATTRO) in the City of London.

It was noted that the Planning and Transportation Committee was supportive of the Order.

RESOLVED – that approval be given to the making of the ATTRO and to the indemnity being provided to Transport for London in the Section 101 Agreement.

7. TRAFFIC CONGESTION

The Committee considered a report of the Director of the Built Environment concerning traffic congestion and a range of measures which could be considered to improve traffic flow.

The Committee noted the recommendations of the Streets and Walkways Sub-Committee.

In response to concerns about the absence of more detailed information and focus on measures such as restricting deliveries, the Chairman of the Streets and Walkways Sub-Committee advised that there was no easy solution to the current traffic congestion problems. The City Corporation had a long way to go

and the suggested measures contained in the report were just a starting point to assist the debate on finding appropriate solutions. He pointed out that at this stage the proposals represented macro level thoughts which would need to be developed and discussed with Transport for London in due course. The Chairman and another Member expressed concern at the time being taken on the issue, which had been raised more than a year ago.

A Member advised of the importance of developing policies which were deliverable, for example, whilst daytime deliveries were a major issue for the City it was a London-wide problem and the City Corporation did not have the power to deal with the issue in isolation. Any measures to be pursed should therefore include information on whether proposals were deliverable.

In response to concerns about the impact of night-time deliveries, it was noted that it was possible to manage any adverse effects such as noise.

Detailed discussion ensued, during which, amongst other things Members acknowledged that it was important to strike a balance between the needs of all road users; noted that traffic congestion was the subject of the biggest single complaint received by City Corporation and expressed support for consideration of restrictions on daytime deliveries to be progressed, including through consolidation centres and night-time deliveries. The Committee also acknowledged the need for London's bus routes and timetabling to be re-examined to make bus use more attractive.

Reference was made to the recommendation relating to the overarching objective of reducing traffic in the City and it was suggested that it should be amended so that it took into account the views of the City Corporation's communities. Members supported the suggestion.

RESOLVED - That approval be given to:-

- 1. the next steps as set out at paragraph 41-45 of the report subject to the proposal contained in paragraph 43 being amended to include a focus on exploring reduction of deliveries within certain times and hours with a view to achieving consolidation;
- 2. an overarching objective of reducing traffic in the City, subject to establishing the extent that the City Corporation's communities find it acceptable, and that this be emphasised in the next draft of the Local Implementation Plan;
- 3. the allocation of a sum of £50k and £40k, respectively, towards the appointment of consultants to advance the City of London's approach to consolidation centres and the appointment of a FTE post, on a one year trial basis, to investigate how better construction and servicing/delivery planning might alleviate City congestion; and
- 4. with the exception of the introduction of toll on bridges, the measures as set out in Appendix 2 of the report be developed in more detail.

8. ASSET OF COMMUNITY VALUE - STILL AND STAR PUBLIC HOUSE

The Committee considered a report of the of the Director of the Built Environment concerning the receipt of an application for the Still and star Public House to be designated as an Asset of Community Value (ACV).

The Committee noted the recommendation of the Planning and Transportation Committee.

Rev'd Campbell-Taylor was in attendance and expressed support for the application. He questioned the reasons given by the Planning and Transportation Committee for not supporting the application and advised that in his view the intention of the Localism Act was clear as approximately 80% of the ACVs granted were public houses. He referred the historical nature of the pub and to the narrow vote on which the decision had been made. He believed that the Planning Committee had misinterpreted the meaning of local community to mean "residents" rather than the wider community. He therefore urged the Policy and Resources Committee to support the application.

The Chairman of the Planning and Transportation Committee referred to the absence of a definition of "community" and explained the reasons on which that Committee had based its recommendation. Detailed discussion ensued during which, amongst other things, the following comments were made:-

- more detailed information was required in order for the Committee to make a decision;
- a number of Members expressed support for the initial recommendation of officers:
- it was important to adopt a policy for dealing with ACVs before determining any application; and
- the responsibility for determining applications for buildings and land to be designated as an ACV was a matter for the Policy and Resources Committee.

After further discussion it was suggested that the application be deferred and that in the meantime a policy be developed and submitted to the next meeting of the Committee for consideration, together with the application. Members supported the suggestion.

RESOLVED – that consideration of the application be deferred pending the development and adoption of the City corporation's policy for determining ACVs.

9. **CO-EXIST HOUSE**

The Committee considered a report of the Director of Economic Development concerning the funding of Coexist House, a learning institution and centre in London dedicated to promoting understanding of religion and to encouraging respect and tolerance.

RESOLVED – that approval be given to the provision of £60,000 phased over three years (£20,000 in 2016/17, £20,000 in 2017/18 and £20,000 in 2018/19) from the Committee's Contingency (charged to City's Cash) in support of the Coexist House initiative.

Sir Michael Snyder withdrew from the meeting whilst the following item was considered.

10. POLICE ARBORETUM MEMORIAL FUNDRAISING DINNER

The Committee considered a report of the Director of Economic Development concerning the Police Arboretum Memorial Trust's Fundraising Dinner.

The Town Clerk stated that it was unlikely that the expenditure of £30,000 would be required.

RESOLVED – that approval be given to the City Corporation hosting a fundraising dinner at Guildhall for the Police Arboretum Memorial Trust at a cost not exceeding £30,000 to be met from the Committee's Contingency for 2016/17 and charged to City's Cash.

11. SPECIAL REPRESENTATIVE TO ASIA

The Committee considered a report of the Director of Economic Development concerning the creation of a new post of Special Representative for Asia.

The Chairman was heard in support of the report. He advised that it followed the City Corporation's approach in dealing with Europe and pointed out that an individual had already been identified given the special nature of the job and the limited options it presented.

A Member questioned whether the approach suggested was sufficient given the difference between the Chinese and Indian markets. He stated that in his view further information and options were required in order for the Committee to make a decision on such an important matter. The Member advised that the proposal was an expensive approach, and the key to obtaining value was the ability of the role to engage with "docking stations" (offices) in the markets and also to operate in London. In order for the proposal to be successful the individual appointed would also need to have convening power and credibility.

During further discussion following comments were made:-

 whilst the model adopted for Europe was successful, the one size approach was not always effective;

- some Members were of the opinion that the difference in the two markets was significant enough to warrant the appointment two separate individuals;
- currently the City Corporation's activities in Asia were insufficient and having a fulltime person representing the organisation would be a huge benefit;
- whilst the two markets were different the government currently had one Minister covering Asia;
- having a representative for Asia was important and whilst the budget should be controlled the appointment should not be constrained by it. As long as this, the terms of reference and ways of working were clearly specified the need for a separation of the two markets could be developed as the initiative progressed on the basis of the Chinese market being a priority. The Committee supported this approach.

RESOLVED – that subject to the approval of the Establishment Committee and the Court of Common Council, approval be given to the creation of a new fixed-term post of Special Representative to Asia for the purposes and on the terms set out in the report and to the recruitment process as set out in paragraph 8 of the report.

12. CENTRE FOR POLICY STUDIES - LIBERTY CONFERENCE

The Committee considered a report of the Director of Economic Development concerning the sponsorship of the Centre for Policy Studies Margaret Thatcher Conference on Liberty in June 2017.

RESOLVED – that approval be given to the provision of £20,000 from the 2017/18 Policy Initiatives Fund to sponsor the Margaret Thatcher Conference on Liberty in June 2017, categorised under "Events" and charged to City's Cash.

13. BREXIT STRATEGY FOR FINANCIAL AND PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

The Committee considered a report of the Director of Economic Development concerning the City Corporation's work programme to support the UK-based financial and professional services industry following the referendum on the UK's membership of the EU.

The Chairman reminded Members that the report followed a request from the Court of Common Council for Members to be provided with details of the City Corporation's activities supporting Brexit. Reference was made to the complexities of the issue and it was suggested that it would be useful to have a summary of the key points and messages included in the report. The Committee supported the suggestion.

RESOLVED – that the report it be noted and that the report be submitted to the Court of Common Council subject to the inclusion of a summary of the key points.

14. OFSTED INSPECTION REPORTS – CHILD PROTECTION, CITY AND HACKNEY SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN BOARD AND ADULT SKILLS AND EDUCATION SERVICE

The Committee considered the reports of the Director of Community and Children's Services concerning the successful outcome of three Ofsted inspections.

The Chairman advised Members that the Director would shortly be leaving the City Corporation and taking up a new position in the London Borough of Bromley. He referred to the Director's contribution to the City Corporation's work over the last four years and to excellent results which had been achieved. The Chairman thanked the Director on behalf of the Committee for all his hard work.

RESOLVED – that the Ofsted reports relating to Child Protection, the City and Hackney Safeguarding Children Board and the Adult Skills and Education Service be noted.

15. TOWN CLERK'S OFFICE BUSINESS PLAN - PROGRESS

The Committee considered a report of the Town Clerk on the progress of the activities contained in the departmental business plan for the period 1 July to 30 September 2016.

RESOLVED – that the report be noted.

16. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Committee considered a report of the Town Clerk on risk management and the two corporate risks relating to the Committee, resilience and loss of business support for the City.

RESOLVED – that the report be noted.

17. POLICY INITIATIVES FUND AND COMMITTEE CONTINGENCY

The Committee considered a statement of the Chamberlain on the use of the Policy Initiatives Fund and Committee Contingency for 2016/17.

RESOLVED - That the statement be noted.

18. **DECISIONS TAKEN UNDER DELEGATED AUTHORITY OR URGENCY POWERS**

The Committee received a report of the Town Clerk reporting action taken in consultation with the Chairman and Deputy Chairman since the last meeting of the Committee.

RESOLVED – That it be noted that approval had been given to the provision of £25,000 for the City Corporation to support and participate in the 2016 Global Innovation Summit organised by Imperial College London and the Global Federation of Competitiveness Councils.

19. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE

There were no questions.

20. **ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT**There were no urgent items.

21. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

MOTION - That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part I of the Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act.

Item Nos.

Paragraph(s) in Schedule 12A

22 - 27 3

Part 2 Non-Public Agenda

22. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES

- 22a. The non-public minutes of the meeting held on 6 October 2016 were approved.
- 22b. The draft non-public minutes of the Resource Allocation Sub-Committee meeting held on 6 October 2016 were noted.
- 22c. The draft non-public minutes of the Public Relations and Economic Development Sub-Committee meeting held on 6 October 2016 were noted.
- 22d. The draft non-public minutes of the Projects Sub-Committee meeting held on 11 October 2016 were noted.
- 22e. The draft non-public minutes of the Cultural Hub Working Party meeting held on 17 October 2016 were noted.

22f. The draft non-public minutes of the Courts Sub-Committee meeting held on 26 October 2016 were noted.

23. WIRELESS CONCESSION CONTRACT (SUPER-FAST CITY)

The Committee considered and agreed a joint report of the Chamberlain and the City Surveyor concerning the Wireless Concession Contract.

24. CENTRAL CRIMINAL COURT PLANT REPLACEMENT

The Committee considered and agreed a report of the City Surveyor concerning Phase 2 of the Central Criminal Court Plant replacements works.

25. DECISIONS TAKEN UNDER DELEGATED AUTHORITY OR URGENCY **POWERS**

The Committee received a report of the Town Clerk reporting action taken in consultation with the Chairman and Deputy Chairman since the last meeting of the Committee. The action taken with regard to the relocation of the Adult Skills and Education Service was noted.

26. MUSEUM OF LONDON RELOCATION

The Committee considered a report of the City Surveyor concerning the next stage of proposals to relocate the Museum of London. With the exception of one recommendation, the proposals were approved.

27. IT DIVISION BUDGET

The Committee considered and agreed a report of the Chamberlain concerning the funding of improvements to the City Corporation's IT infrastructure. It was noted that the proposal was supported by the Finance Committee.

28. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE

There were no questions.

29.	ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED. There were no urgent items.
The	meeting ended at 3.45pm
Cha	irman

Contact Officer: Angela Roach tel. no.: 020 7332 3685 angela.roach@cityoflondon.gov.uk